31626

See B1007 P402 118906 " 433 ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF ASHLEY HILLS CONDOMINIUMS

The undersigned, RICHARD J. GAMELLI, SR. and GLENN A. KOROSTYNSKI, both of Westfield, MA, do hereby associate themselves for the formation of an unincorporated association as provided for in Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 183 A, § 10. The association shall be known as ASHLEY HILLS CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION (hereinafter the Association) and shall undertake the development, management, improvement, preservation and marketing of a condominium development, to be built upon the land, hereinafter described by Richfield Realty Corporation (hereinafter referred to as Richfield), said development to be known as Ashley Hills Condominiums.

The Association, by these Articles, assumes the financial obligation of the property and affairs for the future owners of condominium units to be constructed by Richfield on a plot of land, hereinafter described, located on Hillside Road, in Westfield, Hampden County, Massachusetts.

The Association hereby adopts the following By-Laws for the conducting of the business of the Association.

Signed at Westfield, Massachusetts this 27 day of

Glenn A. Korostynski

BY-LAWS OF ASHLEY HILLS CONDOMINIUMS

ARTICLE I

Section 1. Ownership and Name of Development. Richfield Realty Corporation (hereinafter referred to as Sponsor), has submitted the land located on Hillside Road in Westfield to the provisions of Chapter 183A by way of a Master Deed recorded simultaneously herewith in the Hampden County Registry of Deeds.

The development shall hereinafter be known as "ASHLEY HILLS CONDOMINIUMS"

The affairs of Ashley Hills Condominiums shall be directed and managed by an association of unit owners to be known as the Ashley Hills Condominium Association (hereinafter "Association"). Ashley Hills Condominium Association that accordance with the Association shall be in accordance with the By-Laws and Master Deed recorded simultaneously herewith and any amendments hereinafter made in accordance with the By-Laws.

l- and GLENN A.

Capter 183 A, 515.

od shall undertake; ervation and markets

id development by

ssores the finance the fittle man affield an a ting

--- i de Road, in

Clarical Systems for

.....

J. E.

me: hid ed to it ignates it tai a length

1921年三世 - Temp 18,527 (1

pon the land Corporation

7 associate Mated association;

> Section 2. Applicability of By-Laws. The By-Laws of the Association shall apply to all phases of the preparation, planning, development, construction, maintenance, preservation, marketing, general management of Ashley Hills Condominiums and all property related thereto.

Section 3. Continuing Application of By-Laws. All provisions of these By-Laws shall remain in full force and effect and shall be binding upon all successors in interest to the property, or individual units.

The acceptance of any deed, conveyance, lease, rental agreement or occupancy shall constitute acceptance of the provisions and conditions of the By-Laws, any amendments to the By-Laws, the Master Deed, and all Rules and Regulations properly adopted by the Association.

Section 4. Office. The Board of Managers shall maintain an office at Hillside Road, Westfield, Massachusetts until authorized to move by a vote of a majority of the unit owners.

ARTICLE

BOARD OF MANAGERS

Section 1. Number and Qualification. The affairs of the Condominium shall be governed by a Board of Managers. Until individual units representing 50% in common interest shall have been sold by the Sponsor and shall have been paid for, and thereafter until their successors shall have been elected by the unit owners, the Board of Managers shall consist of such of the officers and the members of the Board of Directors of the Sponsor as shall have been designated by the Sponsor, selected in compliance with Article II, Section 4 of this document. Thereafter, the Board of Managers shall be composed of five persons, selected in compliance with Article II, Section 4 of this document, all of whom shall be owners or spouses of owners, or mortgagees of individual units, or, in the case of partnership owners or mortgagees, shall be members or employees of such partnership, or in the case of corporate owners or mortgagees, shall be officers, stockholders or employees of such corporations, or in the case of fiduciary owners or mortgagees

shall be the fiduciaries or officers or employees of such fiduciaries.

Section 2. Powers and Duties. The Board of Managers shall have the powers and duties necessary for the administration of the affairs of the Condominium and may perform all acts necessary to the orderly conduct of the business of the Association, except as by law or by the Master Deed or by these By-Laws may not be delegated to the Board of Managers by the unit owners. Such powers and duties of the Board of Managers shall include but shall not be limited to, the following:

(a) Operation, care, upkeep and maintenance of the common areas and facilities.

(b) Determination of the common expenses required for the conduct of the affairs of the Condominium, including, without limitation, the operating, maintenance, improvement, development and preservation of the Property.

(c) The assessment and collection of the common charges, due or to become due from the unit owners for services and maintenance and other charges provided for herein, for the

common areas.

(d) Employment and dismissal of the personnel necessary for the maintenance and operation of the common areas and

facilities.

(e) Adoption and amendment of Rules and Regulations, covering the details of the operation and use of the Property, with the approval of a majority of the unit owners, with the exception of the initial rules which are hereby adopted and incorporated herein by reference thereto. (f) Opening of bank accounts on behalf of the Condominium and designating the signatories required therefor.

(g) Purchasing or leasing or otherwise acquiring in the name of the Association, or its designee, corporate or otherwise, on behalf of all unit owners, individual units offered for sale or lease or surrendered by their owners to

the Association.

(h) Purchasing of individual units at foreclosure or other judicial sales in the name of the Association, or its designee, corporate or otherwise, on behalf of all unit

owners.

(i) Selling, leasing, mortgaging, voting the votes appurtenant to (other than for the election of members of the Board of Managers), or otherwise dealing with individual units acquired by, and sub-leasing individual units leased by the Association, or its designee, on behalf of all unit owners.

(j) Organizing corporation or appointing special agents to act as designees of the Association in acquiring title to or leasing of individual units on behalf of all unit owners.

(k) Obtaining of insurance for all the Property, including the individual units, pursuant to the provision of Article V, Section 2 hereof, in such forms and amounts and in such companies as the Board of Managers may approve. (1) Making of repairs, additions and improvements to or alterations of the Property and repairs to and restoration of the Property in accordance with the other provisions of these By-Laws, for the common benefit of the members of the Association or after damage or detailed. Association or after damage or destruction by fire or other casualty, or as a result of condemnation or eminent domain proceedings.

otess of such

E Managers shall e administration of orm all acts necess: be association, each

si-rans and not p mit owners. Such statl include but

tenance of the commu

eses tequited for by aim, tachading

austandance, implores interiy.

: 120 100000 (NE)

mers for services to

ed for merein, hit m

s delecade, decesal

2 200000 17645 215

s mi legiatius.

m et 34 : 4

and the state of

Maif of the twine. *** *******

Telle Lighting 25

s.p. 🖦 . mycha : Mers. Dirthi :riesel of their was s at inginera Liste Hill I I

z maif d Cu

, 11.11 11 718 e electric if most

ise feeling on the

44. I ELL ELL

ocurring Dettal and I - Land M. : L :: #

Section 3. Managing Agent and Manager. The Board of Managers may employ for the Condominium a managing agent or a manager at a compensation established by the Board of Managers, to perform such duties and services as the Board of Managers shall authorize, including, but not limited to the duties listed in sub-divisions (a), (c), (d) (l) of Section 2 of this Article II. The Board of Managers may delegate to the manager or managing agent, all of the powers granted to the Board of Managers by these By-Laws other than the powers set forth in sub-divisions (b), (e), (g), (h), (i), and (j), of Section 2 of this Article II.

Any agreement for such professional management of the condominums may not exceed three (3) years and any such agreement shall provide for termination by either party without cause and without payment of a termination fee.

Section 4. Election and Term of Office. At the first annual meeting of the unit owners to be held within forty-five (45) days after 50% of the units of all phases have been sold and paid for, the Association shall elect two members of the Board of Managers the Association shall elect two members of the Board of managers to serve a two (2) year term and the Sponsor shall appoint three members of the Board of Managers, to serve a one (1) year term. At the expiration of the initial term of office of each respective member of the Board of Managers, his successor shall be elected to serve for a term of two (2) years, except that the Sponsor shall have the Power of Appointment of three members while the write have been sold when the Power of until 90% of the units have been sold when the Power of Appointment of the Sponsor shall be reduced to two members and when all of the units have been sold, the Power of Appointment, by the Sponsor, shall cease and a special meeting shall be called for within forty-five (45) days for the purpose of electing a Board of Managers by the Association. In the event the Sponsor shall elect not to complete all three phases of construction, he shall so certify to the Board of Managers within five (5) years from May 27, 1988 and upon receipt of such certification, the Board of Managers shall within ten (10) days, call a special meeting of the Association for the purpose of electing a Board of Managers to fill the vacancies created by the issuance of the certificate which shall terminate the Sponsor's Power of Appointment reserved herein. The members of the Board of Managers shall hold office until their respective successors shall have been elected by the unit owners.

Section 5. Removal of Members of the Board of Managers. At any regular or special meeting of unit owners, any one or more of the members of the Board of Managers, elected by the Association, may be removed with or without cause by 51% of the unit owners and a successor may then and there or thereafter be elected to fill the vacancy thus created. Any member of the Board of Managers whose removal has been proposed by the unit owners shall be given an opportunity to be heard at the meeting and shall have the right to be represented by Counsel at his own expense.

Section 6. Vacancies. Vacancies in the Board of Managers, other than those appointed by the Sponsor, caused by any reason other than the removal a member thereof by a vote of the unit owners, shall be filled by a vote of the majority of the remaining members at a special meeting of the Board of Managers held for that purpose promptly after the occurrence of any such vacancy, provided members present at such meeting may constitute not less than a quorum of three-quarters (3/4) of the active members and each person so elected shall be a member of the Board of Managers for the remainder of the term of the member so removed and until a successor shall be elected at the next annual meeting of the unit owners.

Section 7. Organization Meeting. The first meeting of the members of the Board of Managers following the annual meeting of the unit owners shall be held within ten (10) days thereafter, at such time and place as shall be fixed by the unit owners at the meeting at which such Board of Managers shall have been elected, and no notice shall be necessary to the newly elected members of the Board of Managers in order to legally constitute such meeting, providing a majority of the whole Board of Managers shall be present thereat.

Section 8. Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board of Managers may be held at such time and place as shall be determined from time to time by a majority of the members of the Board of Managers, but at least two such meetings shall be held during each fiscal year. Notice of regular meetings of the Board of Managers shall be given to each member of the Board of Managers, by mail or telegraph, at least eight (8) business days prior to the day named for such meeting.

Section 9. <u>Special Meetings</u>. Special meetings of the Board of Managers may be called by the President on eight (8) business

he Board of tive successors days notice to each members of the Board of Managers, given by mail or telegraph, which notice shall state the time, place and purpose of the meeting. Special meetings of the Board of Managers shall be called by the President or Secretary in like Managers. H manner and on like notice on the written request of at least two (2) members of the Board of Managers or ten (10) members of the a by the Association Association, stating the reason for the meeting call. of the unit me ite: be elected t

issuance of the

the Board of the mit constitut meaning and smill is own expense.

and of Macagers, अध्ये में में स्था

à 7716 31 128 31: arenty of the

the Board of Marry occurrence of the se

Reeting IA: William

14 of me 122

be a member : tek

. ಜೆ ರಕ್ಷಿ ಜನ್ನು ಜ Letted in the terte.

.TSC Destroy of co TO US Extra DEAT LOTS COMME

De Dit Mest:

124.1 1279 DEZ LO tevil Elected Many ir mistille se ile kari a beg

..... # 12... 1 ::: : :: :: HE.

CT PRINCE SEL SI THE RELAKE !

noer of the Books

ME LOUIS ME

i. met. if i in it

E: 3 | 155

s Power of

Section 10. Waiver of Notice. Any member of the Board of Managers may, at any time waive notice of any meeting of the Board of Managers in writing, and such waiver shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice. Attendance by a member of the Board of Managers at any meeting of the Board shall constitute a waiver of notice by him of the time and place thereof. If all the members of the Board of Managers are present at any meeting of the Board, no notice shall be required and any business may be transacted at such meeting.

Section 11. Quorum of Board of Managers. At all meetings of the Board of Managers, a majority of the members thereof shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and the votes of a majority of the members of the Board of Managers present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall constitute the decision of the Board of Managers. If at any meeting of the Board of Managers there shall be less than a quorum present, a majority of those present may adjourn the meeting from time to time. If after formal adjournment of a meeting for lack of a quorum, a quorum shall be present, all business scheduled for that meeting may be acted upon by the

Section 12. Fidelity Bonds. The Board of Managers shall obtain fidelity bonds or employee dishonesty insurance for all officers and employees of the Condominium handling or responsible for condominium funds. The amount of such bonds or insurance and the election of the company issuing, shall be at the discretion of the Board of Managers. The premiums on such bonds shall constitute a common charge and shall be collected from the members as provided herein.

Section 13. <u>Compensation.</u> No member of the Board of Managers shall receive any compensation from the Condominium for acting as such. This provision, however, shall not prevent the Board from paying reasonable compensation to any of its members for services performed beyond the scope of the duties required by appointment to the Board.

Section 14. Liability of the Board of Managers. The members of the Board of Managers shall not be liable to the unit owners for any mistake of judgment, negligence, or otherwise, except for

their own individual willful misconduct or bad faith. The unit owners shall indemnify and hold harmless each of the members of the Board of Managers against all contractual liability to others arising out of contracts made by the Board of Managers on behalf of the Condominium unless any such contract shall have been made or the condominion duress any such contract shall have been made in bad faith or contrary to the provisions of the Master Deed or of these By-Laws. It is intended that the members of the Board of Managers shall have no personal liability with respect to any contract made by them on behalf of the Condominium. It is also intended that the liability of any unit owner arising out of any contract made by the Board of Managers or out of the aforesaid indemnity in favor of the members of the Board of Managers shall be limited to such proportion of the total liability thereunder as his interest in common areas and facilities bears to the interest of all the unit owners in the common areas and facilities. Every agreement made by the Board of Managers or by the managing agent or by the manager on behalf of the Condominium shall provide that the members of the Board of Managers, or the managing agent, or the manager, as the case may be, are acting only as agents for the unit owners and shall have no personal liability thereunder (except as unit owners), and that each unit owner's liability thereunder shall be limited to such proportion of the total liability thereunder as his interest in the common areas and facilities bears to the interest of all unit owners in the common areas and facilities.

ARTICLE III

UNIT OWNERS

Section 1. Annual Meetings. Promptly after individual units representing 50% or more in common interest shall have been sold by the Sponsor and paid for, the Sponsor shall notify all unit owners thereof, and the first annual meeting of the unit owners shall be held within forty-five (45) days thereafter on a call issued by the President. At such meeting the officers and directors of the Sponsor shall resign as members of the Board of Managers, and all the unit owners, including the Sponsor, shall elect and appoint a new Board of Managers, in accordance with Article II, Section 4. Thereafter, the annual meetings of the unit owners shall be held on the first day of October of each succeeding year, unless such date shall occur on a succeeding Monday. At such meetings the Board of Managers shall be elected by ballot of the unit owners and appointment by the Sponsor in accordance with the requirements of Article II, Section 4, of these By-Laws. The unit owners may transact such other business at such meetings as may properly come before them.

Section 2. Place of Meetings. Meetings of the unit owners shall be held at the principal office of the Condominium or at

such other suitable place convenient to the unit owners as may be designated by the Board of Managers.

Special Meetings of Unit Owners. It shall be the duty of the President to call a special meeting of the unit owners if so directed by resolution of the Board of Managers or upon a petition signed and presented to the Secretary by not less than 50% in common interest, in the aggregate, of unit owners. The notice of any special meeting shall state the time and place of such meeting and the purpose thereof. No business shall be transacted at a special meeting except as stated in the notice. Within thirty (30) days after individual units representing more than 90% in common interest shall have been sold by the Sponsor and paid for, a special meeting of the unit owners shall be held at which meeting all but two (2) members of the Board of Managers appointed by the Sponsor shall resign, and the unit owners, including the Sponsor, shall thereupon elect successor members of the Board of Managers to all the place and others of these the Board of Managers to act in the place and stead of those resigning.

Section 4. Notice of Meetings. It shall be the duty of the Secretary to mail a notice of each annual or special meeting of the unit owners, at least ten but not more than twenty days prior to such meeting, stating the purpose thereof as well as the time and place where it is to be held, to each unit owner of record, at the building or at such other address as such unit owner shall have designated by notice in writing to the Secretary. The mailing of a notice of meeting in the manner provided in this Section shall be considered service of notice.

Section 5. Adjournment of Meetings. If any meeting of unit owners cannot be held because a quorum has not attended, a majority in common interest of the unit owners who are present at such meeting, either in person or by proxy, may adjourn the meeting to a time not less than forty-eight (48) hours from the time the original meeting was called.

Section 6. Order of Business. The order of business at all meetings of the unit owners shall be as follows:

faith. The unit

the members of iability to other banagers on behalf II Paas peer of

the Master Deed o

bers of the board

nith respect to an

nion. It is also

mising out of a

of the aforesaid

i of Managers she latting therend is beats to the

of the Capitalian of Managers, or the Bi 26' 215 TUR 1270 M Person

. auf mat #00 2:

2 5.20 gaves en in the second

n all man man

et <u>atintel</u> m

: 1111 278 NE L mail south all as

: of 24 20 x Craim air te tiliter ti

encers of the body it; ite konst si

i emilie c ci parent lec ti kacini COL DE 2 SUIVA

cajari araji mara

iffer i de geben i

.. I. ierzii:

MI SET THE ME

of the same

ne Irmnari

:::: ***

Leas ani of Macagers of :

- Proof of Notice of Meeting
- Reading of minutes of preceding meeting (c)
- (d) Reports of officers
- Report of Board of Managers (e)
- Reports of committees (f)
- Election of inspectors of election (when so required) (q)
- Election of members of the Board of Managers (when so (h) required)
- Unfinished business

(j) New business

Section 7. Title to Individual Units. Title to individual units may be taken in the name of an individual or in the names of two or more persons, as tenants in common or as joint tenants or as tenants by the entirety, or in the name of a corporation or partnership, or in the name of a fiduciary.

Section 8. Voting. The owner or owners of each individual unit or some person designated by such owner or owners to act as proxy on his or their behalf, who shall be an owner or a member of the Board of Managers, shall be entitled to cast the votes appurtenant to such individual unit at all meetings of unit owners. The designation of any such proxy shall be made in writing to the Secretary and shall be revocable at any time by written notice to the Secretary by the owner or owners so designating. Any or all of such owners may be present at any meeting of the unit owners and (those constituting a group acting unanimously), may vote or take any other action as a unit owner either in person or by proxy. Voting shall be on a percentage basis and each unit owner (including the Sponsor and the Board of Managers, if the Sponsor shall then own, or the Board of Managers, or its designee, shall then hold title to one or more individual units) shall be entitled to cast the same percentage of the vote as the percentage of interest which his or their unit has in the common areas and facilities, as set forth in the Master Deed, notwithstanding that such units may be incomplete or only contemplated by the Master Plan so long as the certificate of intention required under Article II, Section 4 has not been issued by the Sponsor. A fiduciary shall be the voting member with respect to any individual unit owned in a fiduciary capacity.

Section 9. Majority of Unit Owners. As used in these By-Laws the term "majority of unit owners" shall mean those unit owners having more than 50% of the total authorized votes of all unit owners present in person or by proxy and voting at any meeting of the unit owners, determined in accordance with the provisions of Section 8 of this Article III.

Section 10. Quorum. Except as otherwise provided in these By-Laws, the presence in person or by proxy of unit owners have 50% of the total authorized votes of all unit owners shall constitute a quorum at all meetings of the unit owners.

Section 11. Majority Vote. The vote of a majority of unit owners at a meeting at which a quorum shall be present shall be binding upon all unit owners for all purposes except where in the Master Deed or these By-Laws or by law, a higher percentage vote is required.

ARTICLE IV

le to individual al or in the tak or as joint term

e of a corporation

each individual or owners to see E West of a 12% to cast the notes Deet... of wit stall be made it

acie at any time er or expers so

te present at an and the

.... 15 a 2: 30

2 00 1 percent

person and the Sa I the kert :

: ಬ∷ಂಬ αಂπ ಜ SI COR SERVE DECISION

V... 215 or then;

5 14: free 1:2 . S RI R COL

and it is the 2 114 min H.

2 1 dans

341 H 1141 14 Bear mose mir Re

.ie wie für The state of the s

: • .: D: 2732

10 mm. izi 2 mm

T 2 21 X21 L. MERCL

THE TALL WATER

d a septing des

14. 2 THE E COMES STEEL CO. 1 THE HELD

OFFICERS

Section 1. Designation. The principal officers of the Condominium shall be the President, the Vice President, the Secretary and the Treasurer, all of whom shall be elected by the Board of Managers. The Board of Managers may appoint an assistant treasurer, as assistance secretary and such other officers as in its judgment may be necessary. The President and Treasurer, but not other officers, must be members of the Board of Managers. of Managers.

Section 2. <u>Election of Officers</u>. The officers of the Condominium shall be elected annually by the Board of Managers at the organization meeting of each new Board of Managers and shall hold office at the pleasure of the Board of Managers.

Section 3. Removal of Officers. Upon the affirmative vote of a majority of the members of the Board of Managers, any officer may be removed, either with or without cause, and his successor may be elected at any regular meeting of the Board of Managers, or at any special meeting of the Board of Managers called for such purpose.

Section 4. <u>President</u>. The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Condominium. He shall preside at all meetings of the unit owners and of the Board of Managers. He shall have all of the general powers and duties which are incident to the office of president of a stock corporation organized under the Business Corporation Law of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, including but not limited to the power to appoint committees from among the unit owners from time to time as he may in his discretion decide is appropriate to assist in the conduct of the affairs of the Condominium.

Section 5. <u>Vice President</u>. The Vice President shall take the place of the President and perform his duties whenever the President shall be absent or unable to act. If neither the President nor the Vice President is able to act, the Board of Managers shall appoint some other member of the Board of Managers to act in the place of the President, on an interim basis. The Vice President shall also perform such other duties as shall from time to time be imposed upon him by the Board of Managers or by the President.

Section 6. Secretary. The Secretary shall keep the minutes of all meetings of the unit owners and of the Board of Managers; he shall have charge of such books and papers as the Board of

Managers may direct; and he shall, in general, perform all the duties incident to the office of secretary of a stock corporation organized under the Business Corporation Law of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.

Section 7. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have the responsibility for Condominium funds and securities and shall be responsible for keeping full and accurate financial records and books of account showing all receipts and disbursements, and for the preparation of all required financial data. He shall be responsible for the deposit of all monies and other valuable effects in the name of the Board of Managers, or the managing agent, in such depositories as may from time to time be designated by the Board of Managers, and he shall, in general, perform all the duties incident to the office of treasurer of a stock corporation organized the under Business Corporation law of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.

Section 8. Agreements, Contracts, Deeds, Checks, etc. All agreements, contracts, deeds, leases, checks and other instruments of the Condominium shall be executed by the President and Treasurer of the Condominium or by such other person or persons as may be designated by the Board of Managers.

Section 9. Compensation of Officers. No officer shall receive any compensation from the Condominium for acting as such. This provision, however, shall not prevent the Board of Managers from voting a reasonable compensation to any member of the Board of Managers or officer of the Association for services rendered beyond the call of duty of such office or a member, receiving from an employer outside the Association, commissions or compensation for services furnished by his employer or principal, provided a full disclosure of all facts are made known to the Board of Managers in writing before any contract is signed by the Association.

ARTICLE V

OPERATION OF THE PROPERTY

Section 1. Determination of Common Expenses and Fixing of Common Charges. The Board of Managers shall from time to time, and at least annually, prepare a budget for the Condominium, determine the amount of the common charges payable by the unit owners to meet the common expenses of the Condominium, and allocate and assess such common charges among the unit owners according to their respective common interests. The common expenses shall include, among other things, the cost of all insurance premiums on all policies of insurance required to be or which have been obtained by the Board of Managers pursuant to the

provisions of Section 2 of this Article V. The common expenses may also include such amounts as the Board of Managers may deem proper, for the operation and maintenance of the Property including, without limitation, an amount for working capital of the Condominium, for a general operating reserve, for a reserve fund for replacements, and to make up any deficit in the common expenses for any prior year. (The common expenses may also include such amounts as may be required for the purchase or lease by the Board of Managers or its designee, corporate or otherwise, on behalf of all unit owners, of any individual unit whose owner has elected to sell or lease such individual unit or of any individual unit which is to be sold at a foreclosure or other judicial sale.) The Board of Managers shall advise all unit owners, promptly, in writing, of the amount of common charges payable by each of them, respectively, as determined by the Board of Managers, as aforesaid, and shall furnish copies of each budget on which such common charges are based, to all unit owners and to their mortgagees.

d, perform all of a stock corporat

of the Componer.

inancial records ist usaets e ia:a. Be stall : and the value rs, or the Rose

me to time be e stall, in just

126 T. AG216. less Corporation's

CG ELLER

त्रक्ताच्य अं अस्ट

at his pent of tatages.

that all a

: Eminer. e Board of Margar

mester of the later

u entre orde

I i beider, texto

are this CN To

munt a set:

(T)

ene rila:

F1. (7 14). n ne labo

11:5 74/12:5 7 2. 24 (212.1.2 5 **2006** 26 2004 11616W. 😘 🚾 .:: 2: 2: L 15:7213 (4,-2) i bilin XII

. 2000 351015 T iis aşlige oga

page the curities and she

> Section 2. <u>Insurance</u>. The Board of Managers shall be required to obtain and maintain, to the extent obtainable, the following insurance:

- "All risk" insurance insuring all of the Buildings (including all of the individual units and the sheetrock walls and ceilings, carpeting, bathroom and kitchen fixtures initially installed therein by the Sponsor, but not including any wall, ceiling or floor decorations or coverings or furniture, furnishings or other personal property or equipment supplied or installed by unit owners, together with all air-conditioning equipment and other service machinery contained therein and covering the interests of the Condominium, the Board of Managers and all unit owners and their mortgagees, as such interest may appear, in an amount equal to the full replacement value of the Buildings, allowing normal deduction for depreciation; each of said policies shall contain a Massachusetts standard mortgagee clause in favor of each mortgagee of an individual unit which shall provide that the loss, if any, thereunder shall be payable to such mortgagee as its interest may appear, subject however, to the loss payment provisions in favor of the Board of Managers hereinafter set forth.
- (2) Worker's compensation insurance, if necessary.
- (3) Such other insurance as the Board of Managers may

All such policies shall provide that adjustment of loss shall be made by the Board of Managers, and that the net proceeds thereof shall be payable to the Board of Managers.

The amount of fire insurance to be maintained until the first meeting of the Board of Managers following the first annual meeting of the unit owners shall be in at least the sum of Two Million One Hundred Thousand (\$2,100,000.00) Dollars and the premium therefor shall be a deferred charge against the common charges.

All policies of physical damage insurance shall contain waivers of subrogation and waivers of any defense based on co-insurance or of invalidity arising from acts of the insured, and shall provide that such policies may not be cancelled or substantially modified without at least ten (10) days prior written notice to all of the insureds, including all mortgagees of individual units. Duplicate originals of all policies of physical damage insurance and of all renewals thereof, together with proof of payment of premiums, shall be delivered to all mortgagees of individual units at least ten (10) days prior to expiration of the then current policies. Prior to obtaining any policy of fire insurance or any renewal thereof, the Board of Managers shall obtain an appraisal from a fire insurance company or otherwise of the full replacement value of the Buildings, including all of the individual units and all of the common areas and facilities therein, with normal deduction for depreciation, for the purpose of determining the amount of fire insurance to be effected pursuant to this Section.

The Board of Managers shall also be required to obtain and maintain, to the extent obtainable, public liability insurance in such limits as the Board of Managers may from time to time determine, covering each member of the Board of Managers, the managing agent, the manager and each unit owner. Such public liability coverage shall also cover cross liability claims of one insured against another. The Board of Managers shall review such limits once each year. Until the first meeting of the Board of Managers following the first annual meeting of the unit owners, such public liability insurance shall be in a limit of not less than One Million and 00/100 (\$1,000,000.00) Dollars for all damages arising out of bodily injury, sickness or disease, including death at any time resulting therefrom, and injury to or destruction of property, such coverage customarily referred to as "combined single limit" coverage.

The cost of all such insurance obtained and maintained by the Board of Managers pursuant to the provisions of this Section 2, above, shall be a common expense.

Unit owners shall not be prohibited from carrying other insurance for their own benefit provided that all such policies shall contain waivers of subrogation and further provided that the liability of the carriers issuing insurance obtained by the Board of Managers shall not be affected or diminished by reason of any such additional insurance carried by any unit owner.

tment of loss at the net proceed

tined until the

ing the first way

s: the sum of he

oliars and the

gainst the comm

ce shall contain

iesse based o

cts of the locate

o caccelled or

12) tajs ştigt

ring in Richie

i. plaise é

s cetec! the ie irered to 1 ii in file till a and a Medi, the Red ! in marin

in in imme of the names:

. ಈಗಿದ್ದವೆ ಬಿಡಗಾಗಿ

: Littley upon

in Lie nig

ari ii tuma. a

Mest. imm

Lucin des

erjer ell wat mentan di de Azio

N kinini Ces a free

erin, et in Sala Ser

1.141 E1 E1115

The Board of Managers shall not use the proceeds of hazard insurance for losses to any condominium property (whether to individual units or to common elements) for other than the repair, replacement or reconstruction of such condominium property except as provided by statute in case of substantial loss to the units and/or common elements of the condominium unless at least seventy-five (75%) percent of the unit owners of the individual condominium units have given prior written approval.

Section 3. Repair or Reconstruction After Fire or Other Casualty. In the event of damage to or destruction of the Buildings as a result of fire or other casualty (unless such loss exceeds 10% of the value of the condominium prior to the fire or other casualty and 75% or more of the unit owners do not agree within 120 days of the date of the fire or other casualty to proceed with repair or restoration), the Board of Managers shall arrange for the prompt repair and restoration of the Buildings arrange for the prompt repair and restoration of the Buildings (including any damaged individual units, and the sheetrock walls and ceilings, carpeting, kitchen or bathroom fixtures initially installed therein by the Sponsor, but not including any wall, ceiling, or floor decorations or coverings or other furniture, furnishings, fixtures or equipment supplied or installed by unit owners in the individual units), and the Board of Managers shall disburse the proceeds of all insurance policies to the contractors engaged in such repair and restoration in excess of the insurance proceeds shall constitute a common expense and the Board of Managers may assess all the unit owners for such deficit as part of the common charges; provided, however, that if such excess cost exceeds 10% of the value of the Condominium prior to the fire or other casualty, any unit owner who did not so agree may apply to the Hampden County Superior Court on such notice to the unit owners as the Court shall direct, for an order directing the purchase of his unit by the unit owners of the fair market value thereof, as approved by the Court.

The cost of any such purchase shall be a common expense. If such loss exceeds 10% of the value of the Condominium prior to the fire or other casualty and 75% or more of the unit owners do not agree within sixty (60) days after the date of the fire or other casualty to proceed with repair or restoration, the Property shall be subject to an action for partition at the suit of any unit owner or lienor, as if owned in common, in which

event the net proceeds of insurance policies (or if there shall have been a repair or restoration pursuant to the first paragraph of this Section 3, and the amount of insurance proceeds shall have exceeded the cost of such repair or restoration, then the excess of such insurance proceeds) shall be divided by the Board of Managers among all the unit owners in proportion to their respective common interests, after first paying out of the share of each unit owner the amount of any unpaid liens on his individual unit, in the order of the priority of such liens. Upon such sale, the Condominium shall be deemed removed from the provisions of Massachusetts General Laws (Ter. Ed.) Chapter 183A, as amended, but any such action for partition shall be subject to dismissal at any time prior to entry of an order to sell if an appropriate agreement to rebuild is filed with the Court.

Section 4. Payment of Common Charges. All unit owners shall be obligated to pay the common charges assessed by the Board of Managers pursuant to the provisions of Section 1 of this Article vat such time or times as the Board of Managers shall determine.

No unit owner shall be liable for the payment of any part of the common charges assessed against his individual unit subsequent to a sale, transfer or other conveyance by him (made in accordance with the provisions of Section 1 of Article VII of these By-Laws) of such individual unit, together with the Appurtenant Interests, as defined in Section 1 of Article VII In addition, any unit owner may, subject to the terms hereof. and conditions specified in these By-Laws, provided that his individual unit is free and clear of liens and encumbrances other than a permissable first mortgage and the statutory lien for unpaid common charges, convey his individual unit, together with "Appurtenant Interests" to the Board of Managers, or its designee, corporate or otherwise, on behalf of all other unit owners, and in such event be exempt from common charges thereafter assessed. A purchaser of an individual unit shall be liable for the payment of common charges assessed against such individual unit prior to the acquisition by him of such individual unit, except that a mortgagee or other purchaser of an individual unit at a foreclosure sale of such individual unit shall not be liable for and such individual unit shall not be subject to a lien for the payment of common charges assessed prior to the foreclosure sale, during the period as mortgagee in possession, or as owner after foreclosure, but said charges incurred after foreclosure shall be assumed by any subsequent purchaser of such unit as part of the purchase price.

Section 5. <u>Collection of Assessments</u>. The Board of Managers shall assess common charges against the unit owners from time to time and at least annually and shall take prompt action to collect any common charge due from any unit owner which remains

unpaid for more than thirty (30) days from the due date for payment thereof.

lox if there shall the first prago ration, then the

arvided by the Boi:

portion to their ing out of the sheep

med removed from E . Ed.) Chapter on stall be sther. atter to sell if i it. the Court,

HALL MARE IN essed by the back

ion of this beragara stall lear.

Aner day

rielens in m F

x . :: temer

rid tribe

man nam सामा हिंदी साम mi granne: Manua be b 11. Zit. 252.

assessed which is

N 1.2 1 50

T HAT WINE STEEL CHITCHES

A III II Y THE PERSON

e per di u rom

: M: 21 22

1 1 E TAN T.3.

The head of the

na mada : : E : E :: ... X. C.3

THE THE atribi mit

Gente Com

liens on his y of such lies, Section 6. <u>Default in Payment of Common Charges</u>. In the event of default by any unit owner in paying to the Board of Managers the common charges as determined by the Board of Managers, such unit owner shall be obligated to pay interest at the legal rate on such common charges from the due date thereof, together with all expenses, including attorneys' fees, incurred by the Board of Managers in any proceeding brought to collect such unpaid common charges. The Board of Managers shall have the right and duty to attempt to recover such common charges, together with interest thereon, and the expenses of the proceeding, including attorneys' fees, in an action to recover the same brought against such unit owner, or by foreclosure of the lien on such individual unit granted by Massachusetts General Laws (Ter. Ed.) Chapter 183A, as amended.

Foreclosure of Liens for Unpaid Common Charges. In Section 7. any action brought by the Board of Managers to foreclose a on an individual unit because of unpaid common charges, the unit owner shall be required to pay a reasonable rental for the use of his individual unit and the plaintiff in such foreclosure action shall be entitled to the appointment of a receiver to collect the The Board of Managers, acting on behalf of all unit owners, shall have power to purchase such individual unit at the foreclosure sale and to acquire, hold, lease, mortgage, vote the votes appurtenant to, convey or otherwise deal with the same. A suit to recover a money judgment for unpaid common charges shall be maintainable without foreclosing or waiving the lien securing the same.

Section 8. Statement of Common Charges. The Board of Managers shall promptly provide any unit owner or prospective purchaser or mortgagee, so requesting the same in writing, with a written statement of all unpaid common charges due from such unit owner or previously incurred for which said purchasers may be liable under Section 4, supra.

9. Abatement and Enjoinment of Violations by Unit The Violation of any rule or regulation adopted by the Board of Managers, or the breach of any provision of the Master Deed shall give the Board of Managers the right, in addition to any other rights set forth in these By-Laws:

To enter the individual unit in which, or as to which, such violation or breach exists and to summarily abate and remove, at the expense of the defaulting unit owner, any structure, thing or condition that may exist therein contrary to the intent and meaning of the provision whereof, and the Board of Managers shall not thereby be deemed guilty in any manner of trespass.

(b) To enjoin, abate or remedy by appropriate legal proceedings, either at law or in equity, the continuance of any such breach.

Section 10. Maintenance and Repair of Units.

A. The unit owners shall be individually responsible for the proper maintenance and repair of their respective units, whether structural or non-structural, ordinary or extraordinary, except as otherwise specifically provided herein or in the Master Deed, including, without limitation, the maintenance, repair, and replacement of the rear deck (except the painting or staining of same), the maintenance, repair, and replacement of interior finish walls, ceiling, and floors, windows, glass, and interior window trims; doors, door frames, and interior door trim; heating, ventilating and air conditioning equipment serving such unit; plumbing and sanitary waste fixtures and fixtures for water and other utilities; electrical fixtures and outlets; and all wires, pipes, drains, and conduits for water, sewerage, electric power and light, telephone and any other utility services that are contained in and exclusively serve each unit except where the repair or replacement is covered by insurance carried by the Board of Managers. of Managers shall at any time in their reasonable judgment determine that the interior of any unit, including without limitation, mains and pipes for water and sewerage and electrical conduits, are in such need of maintenance or repair that the market value of one or more other units is being adversely affected or that the condition of a unit or fixtures, furnishings, facilities, or equipment therein is hazardous to any unit or the occupants thereof, the Board of Managers shall in writing request the unit owner to perform the needed maintenance, repair or replacement or to correct the hazardous condition, and in case such work shall not have been commenced within fifteen (15) days (or such reasonable shorter period in case of emergency as the Board of Managers shall determine) of such request and thereafter diligently brought to completion the Board of Managers shall be entitled to have the work performed for the account of such unit owner and to enter upon and have access for such unit for that purpose. The cost of such work shall constitute a lien upon such unit and the unit owner shall be personally liable therefor and such lien shall have the same priority as a lien under Section 4 of Article VI hereof.

Section 10. Maintenance, Repair and Replacement of Common Areas and Facilities.

B. The Board of Managers shall be responsible for the proper maintenance, repair and replacement of the common areas and facilities of the Condominium, including the maintenance and repair of the exterior portions of the units (including the painting or staining of the exteriors of the units) and the spaces exclusively assigned to unit owners and the maintenance, repair and replacement of the shrubbery located in the common areas, except as otherwise provided herein or in the Master Deed. The cost of such maintenance, repair, and replacement shall be assessed to the unit owners as common expenses of the Condominium at such times and in such amounts as provided in Article V, Section 1, hereof, except to the extent that the same are necessitated by the negligence, misuse, abuse or neglect of a unit owner, his or her agents, or invitees, in which event such expense shall be charged to such unit owner individually and the unit owner shall be personally liable therefor.

Section 10.

on pe gsemeg dollf

the continuance t

y responsible for tespective mix linary or

ifically proving

without limite

t of the rear lan e , the Mintel

15: Walls, Tall or engine tring

eri, teating,

Met: Service 522 ues ad firms

ार स्टब्स् इ.स. १८३६ स्टब्स्

Lag the mid mi die El al Billio

egillenett is one

eries. Eus : [8151221] : 1-

E. Berne ii milene

me me me m.

medicia d'inti #1.721 TEL.

3 Demi na

der ism tim s

Frank RESERVE TERMS

3 27 ::= mercen a un

THE METERS IN THE : Bert if Grant

te: in he and.

od 1275 Erres fire

ing mineral

ま 二 二 元 光工

Fatt 420 Etc.

wiate legal

The Board of Managers shall be required to establish and maintain an adequate reserve fund for the periodic maintenance, repair and replacement of those portions of the common areas that the Association is obligated to maintain. The fund shall be maintained out of regular assessments for common expenses.

Additionally, an initial working capital fund shall be established equal to at least two months estimated common area charge for each unit. Each unit's share of the working capital fund must be collected and transferred to the Association at the time of closing of the sale of each unit and maintained in a segregated account for the use and the benefit of the Association. The contribution to the working capital fund for each unsold unit shall be paid to the Association within sixty (60) days after the date of conveyance of the first unit of the Condominium. Amounts paid into the working capital fund shall not be considered as advance payment of regular assessments. The purpose of the working capital fund is to insure that there will be cash available to meet unforeseen expenditures or to acquire additional equipment or services deemed necessary or desirable by the Board of Managers.

Section 11. Restrictions on Use of Individual Units. to provide for congenial occupancy of the property and for the protection of the values of the individual units, the use of the property shall be restricted to and shall be in accordance with the following provisions:

- A. Each unit is hereby restricted to residential use by the unit owner(s) thereof. Each unit is hereby restricted to residential use, to be permanently occupied by no more than two persons per bedroom as a single-family residence and shall be used for no other purpose. Notwithstanding any provisions of this paragraph to the contrary, however, the Sponsor, its successors or assigns, have the right, until all units in the Ashley Hills Condominiums have been sold by them, to use any unit or common or community area or facility owned by them for models and for sales, construction, storage and administration. The said Sponsor, its successors and assigns shall have the further right to let or lease any units, which have not been sold by it, including any such unit later acquired by it, upon such terms and for such periods as Sponsor in its sole discretion shall determine, provided such unit is continually offered for sale by the Sponsor.
- B. The common areas and facilities shall be used only for the furnishing of the services and facilities for which they are reasonably suited and which are incident to the use and occupancy of individual units.
- C. No nuisances shall be allowed on the property nor shall any use or practice be allowed which is a source of annoyance to its residents or which interferes with the normal peaceful possession or proper use of the property by its residents.
- D. No immoral, improper, offensive or unlawful use shall be made of the property or any part thereof, and all valid laws, zoning ordinances and regulations of all governmental bodies having jurisdiction thereof shall be observed. Violations of laws, orders, rules, regulations or requirements of any governmental agency having jurisdiction thereof, relating to any portion of the property, shall be complied with, by and at the sole expense of the unit owners or the Board of Managers, whichever shall have the obligation to maintain or repair such portion of the property.
- E. <u>Leasing</u>. In order to provide for congenial occupancy of the property and for the protection of the values of the units, except as permitted herein, no unit may be leased to or occupied by anyone other than the owner and his/her/their immediate family for a period of less than one (1) year. Units which are leased to and/or occupied by anyone other

than an owner or a member of an owner's immediate family shall be so leased or occupied pursuant to a written lease agreement which names the Board of Managers as a party thereto and provides that:

in accordance viz

sidential use by:

eby testricted bied ph no sous

. Tesidence El twithstanding E

tracy, towerer.

re the tight, m 28 7378 been st wonity area or ::: sa'.es,

:. Te sit ig ne inthe in been sold by in

pd :: 1 200 250

2 23 SOLE 150

s merchally de

5131. × 381 V

27:11:45 to 62: unien u un

124 property 215

23 828 2 atties the

I THE HE ereci. mia' m' ins if ill per PL. MINE

PERMIT I PACT 17.11 77.11

i de propie de

aters : 2:21

E 574 27 3

er printin

... TEL 1

T. T 11 14 7.3. . x ... E 1 = ne we ein's ES 122 18 . 7 xiii. H ij egal.

- Tenant shall be bound by the terms of the Master Deed, By-Laws and Rules and Regulations of Ashley Hills Condominiums, including the portions thereof relating to fines for violations of the said Rules and Regulations;
- Tenant shall upon notice from the Board of Managers in writing, pay the Common Area Charges for his/her/their unit directly to the Board and may reduce the rental payment to landlord accordingly;
- Non-payment of Common Area Charges or failure to comply with the Condominium Documents shall be grounds for eviction by the Board of Managers but shall in no way vitiate or diminish landlord/unit owner's obligation to pay said Common Area Charges;
- (4) The tenant may not assign or sublet without the written consent of the Board of Managers; and
- (5) Any lease hereunder shall first have to comply with the provisions of Article VII, Sales, Leases and Mortgages of Units.
- No person under fourteen (14) years of age shall occupy an individual unit without parental presence and supervision unless said occupation in each instance be expressly permitted in writing by the Board of Managers, or the managing agent or the manager. Such consent shall not be unreasonably denied, and such consent, if given, shall be revocable only for reasonable cause by a forty-eight (48) hour written notice either in hand delivered to the owner of the unit involved or by first class mail, sent post-paid to the last known address of such owner, by the Board of Managers, or the managing agent or the manager. If at the end of forty-eight (48) hours, the occupant has not vacated, the occupant shall be deemed a tenant at will and shall be subject to the laws of Summary Process, Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 239, and the Board of Managers shall be authorized to proceed to evict such person under the provisions of said Statute.
- G. No flammable liquids or gases, including but not limited to kerosene, shall be brought into, stored or used in or around any unit without express written permission of the Board of Managers. Nor shall any free-standing heating

units or supplemental heating apparatus of any kind be brought into any unit without express written permission of the Board of Managers.

Section 13. Addition, Alterations or Improvements by Board of Managers. Whenever in the judgment of the Board of Managers the common areas and facilities shall require additions, alterations or improvements, and the making of such additions, alterations or improvements shall have been approved by 75% or more of the unit owners, the Board of Managers shall proceed with such additions, alterations or improvements and shall assess all unit owners for the cost thereof as a common charge; provided, however, that if the cost of any such additions, alterations or improvements exceeds 10% of the then value of the Condominium, any unit owner who did not so agree may apply to the Hampden County Superior Court on such notice to the unit owners as the Court shall direct, for an order directing the purchase of his unit for the fair market value thereof, as approved by the Court. The cost of any such purchase shall be a common expense.

If 50% or more but less than 75% of the unit owners agree to make any such additions, alterations or improvements, the cost thereof shall be borne solely by the owners so agreeing. This provision shall apply, however, only after 50% of the units have been sold and until such time that the Board of Managers may act according to a majority vote of said Board.

Section 14. Additions, Alterations or Improvements by Unit Owners. No unit owner shall make any structural addition, alteration, or improvement in or to his individual unit, without the prior written consent thereto of the Board of Managers. The Board of Managers shall have the obligation to answer any written request by a unit owner for approval of a proposed structural addition, alteration or improvement in such unit owner's individual unit, within thirty (30) days after such request, and failure to do so within the stipulated time shall constitute a consent by the Board of Managers to the proposed addition, alteration or improvement. Any application to any department or governing authority of the City of Westfield or to any other governmental authority for a permit to make an addition, alteration or improvement in or to any individual unit shall be executed by the Board of Managers only, without however incurring any liability on the part of the Board of Managers or any of them to any contractor, sub-contractor or material man on account of such addition, alteration or improvement, or to any person having any claim for injury to person or damage to property arising therefrom. The provisions for this Section 14 shall not apply to individual units owned by the Sponsor and paid for.

Section 15. Use of Common Areas and Facilities. A unit owner shall not place or cause to be placed in the common areas or common facilities any furniture, packages or objects of any kind, except as may be authorized by the Rules and Regulations from time to time adopted by the Association regarding the use of such

any kind be ten permission of

ents by Board of Id of Managers Us

tions, alteration cos, alteration E note of the a.

ses such addition 1 in towners ! . bowever, the

a factosenen;? tim, my mit one

r Carl Saere 20 1211: 31311 af als mit form thur. New

e mit weet me traets, tex

R RIMER M Strict Course

t of bengerage

1.1.1.1 2.1.42

card of Mongan & o to eight even proceed mana

n na me'i eiter mei recht,

De stall mis.co.

ergesei edittir

x u ei igen

4.1 7 12 10 mg te m witt.

i.r.ini 7: (1)

CONTRACT NAME OF were ref.

er a der e andi

A I I I HEEF 2 11 12 15 1 12 15 ... ::: ::: T.h.: ::::: £! 2.! £.

Section 16. Right of Access. A unit owner shall grant a right of access to his individual unit to the manager or the managing agent or any other person authorized by the Board of Managers, the manager or the managing agent, for the purpose of making inspections or for the purpose of correcting any condition which violates the provisions of any mortgage covering another individual unit, provided that requests for entry are made in advance and that any such entry is at a time reasonably convenient to the unit owner. In case of emergency, such right of entry shall be immediate, whether the unit owner is present at the time or not.

Section 17. Rules of Conduct. Rules and regulations concerning the use of the individual units and the common areas and facilities may be promulgated and amended by the Board of Managers with the approval of a majority of the unit owners, except that the written rules adopted by these By-Laws shall except that the written rules adopted by these by Laws Shall remain in force and effect until amended, altered, or abandoned by a 75% of the membership at or after the first annual meeting as provided in Article II, Section 4. Copies of such Rules and Regulations shall be furnished by the Board of Managers to each unit owner prior to the time when the same shall become effective. Initial Rules and Regulations, while shall be effective until amended by the Board of Managers with the approval of a majority of the unit owners, are annexed to the Master Deed as Exhibit C.

Section 18. Water and Sewer Use. Water shall be supplied to all of the individual units and the common areas and facilities through one or more building meters and the Board of Managers shall pay, as a common expense, all charges for water consumed on the property excluding the individual units, together with all related sewer use charges arising therefrom, promptly after the bills for the same shall have been rendered. In the event of a proposed sale of an individual unit by the owner thereof, the Board of Managers, on request of the selling unit owner shall execute and deliver to the purchaser of such individual unit or to the purchaser's title insurance company, a letter agreeing to pay all charges for water and sewer use affecting the property as of the date of closing of title to such individual unit, promptly after such charges shall have been billed by the city collector. Section 19. <u>Electricity</u>. Electricity shall be supplied by the public utility company serving the area directly to each individual unit through a separate meter and each unit owner shall be required to pay the bills for electricity consumed or used in his individual unit. The electricity serving the common areas and facilities shall be separately metered, and the Board of Managers shall pay all bills for electricity consumed in such portions of the common areas and facilities, as a common expense.

Section 20. Unanimous Consent of Unit Owners for Certain Work. No work which would jeopardize the soundness or safety of the buildings shall be done in a unit or in the common areas and facilities unless in every such case the unanimous consent of all unit owners is first obtained.

Section 21. <u>Designated Reserved Parking Spaces</u>. Two parking spaces shall be designated for each unit and marked as such. Only unit owners and their guests shall have the right to use such spaces. The Board of Managers, or the Managing Agent, upon the written request of any unit owner shall have any vehicle not authorized to be parked in any such reserved space removed from such space at the cost of the owner of such vehicle.

ARTICLE VI

MORTGAGES

Section 1. Notice to Board of Managers. A unit owner who mortgages his individual unit, shall notify the Board of Managers of the name and address of his mortgagee and the Secretary or such member or person as the Board may appoint, shall maintain such information in a book entitled "Mortgages of Individual Units." Said record shall form part of the permanent records of the Association and shall be available to any person, who in the sole discretion of the Board, is entitled to the information contained therein. The members of the Board of Managers or any officers are hereby exempt from any liability for disclosing confidential information contained in said record.

Section 2. Notice of Unpaid Common Charges. The Board of Managers, whenever so requested in writing by a mortgagee of an individual unit, or any prospective purchaser or his attorney, shall promptly report any then unpaid common charges due from, or any other default by the owner of the mortgaged individual unit.

Section 3. Notice of Default. The Board of Managers when giving notice to a a unit owner of a default in paying common charges or other default, shall send a copy of such notice to each holder of a mortgage covering such individual unit whose

name and address has theretofore been furnished to the Board of Managers.

supplied by the T to each 120 unit owner

consumed or serving the come ed, and the Board

consumed in set

for Certain Wat.

inc is consent of t

12: (at as 520).

126 11411 to 28

12:15:25 kgen 3: 27: 257 febber

1 SCA10 (MC76) In

Maria i over ve Parte Berri el Mese Di une Berrene

ares of Little

e perener incoto the utimes:

ari of target or

log for Lidas; i centi.

es. 2: hadd

i i raze

45E I 15 E

THE THE STATE OF T

761:2.8.

Section 4. Examination of Books. Each unit owner and each mortgagee of an individual unit, upon a three (3) day written notice of his intention so to do in hand delivered to any member of the Board of Managers, shall be permitted to examine the books of the account of the Condominium at reasonable times, on business days, but not more often than once a month unless for reasons stated, the Board of Managers shall provide otherwise.

ARTICLE VII

SALES, LEASES AND MORTGAGES OF UNITS

Section 1. Sale and Leases. No unit owner may sell or lease his individual unit or any interest therein except by complying with the following provisions: Any unit owner who receives a bona fide offer for the sale of his individual unit together with: (i) the undivided interest in the common areas and facilities appurtenant thereto; (ii) the interest of such unit in any individual units theretofore acquired by the Board of Managers, or its designee, on behalf of all unit owners, or the proceeds of the sale or lease thereof, if any; and (iii) the interest of such unit owner in any other assets of the Condominium, (hereinafter collectively called the "Appurtenant Interest"), or a bona fide offer for a lease of his individual unit, (hereinafter collectively called an "Outside Offer"), which he intends to accept, shall give notice to the Board of Managers of such offer and of such intention, the name and address of the proposed purchaser or lessee, the terms of the proposed transaction and such other information as the Board of Managers may reasonably require, and shall offer to sell such individual unit, together with the Appurtenant Interests, or to lease such individual unit, to the Board of Managers, or its designee, corporate or otherwise, on behalf of the owners of all other individual units, on the same terms and conditions as contained in such Outside Offer. The giving of such notice shall constitute a warranty and representation by the unit owner who has received such offer, to the Board of Managers on behalf of the other unit owners, that such unit owner believes the Outside Offer to be bona fide in all respects. Within thirty (30) days after receipt of such notice, the Board of Managers may elect, by notice to such unit owner, to purchase such individual unit, together with the Appurtenant Interests, or to lease such individual unit, as the case may be (or to cause the same to be purchased or leased by its designee, corporate or otherwise), on behalf of all other unit owners, on the same terms and conditions as contained in the Outside Offer and as stated in the notice from the offering unit owner. In the event the Board of Managers

shall elect to purchase such individual unit, together with the Appurtenant Interests, or to lease such individual unit, or to cause the same to be purchased or leased by its designee, corporate or otherwise, title shall close at the offices of Berndt, Larsen and Zenkert, P.C., 51 Court Street, Westfield, Massachusetts, within forty-five (45) days after the giving of notice by the Board of Managers of its election to accept such offer. At the closing, the unit owner, if such individual unit, together with Appurtenant Interests, is to be sold, shall convey the same to the Board of Managers, or to its designee, on behalf of all other unit owners, by deed in the form required by Massachusetts General Laws (Ter. Ed.) Chapter 183A, as amended, with Massachusetts Documentary stamps affixed.

In the event such individual unit is to be leased, the offering unit owner shall execute and deliver to the Board of Managers, or to its designee, a lease between the offering unit owner, as landlord, and the Board of Managers, or its designee, as tenant, covering such individual unit, on the terms and conditions contained in such Outside Offer. The Board of Managers shall have the full right, at its sole discretion, to sub-lease or otherwise dispose of the use and occupancy of said unit during the period of said lease without assent or authorization by the lessor. In the event the Board of Managers or its designee shall fail to accept such offer within thirty (30) days as aforesaid, the offering unit owner shall be free to contract to sell such individual unit, together with the Appurtenant Interest, or to lease such individual unit, as the case may be, within sixty (60) days after the expiration of the period in which the Board of Managers or its designee might have accepted such offer, to the Outside Offeror, on the terms and conditions set forth in the notice from the offering unit owner to the Board of Managers of such Outside Offer. Any such deed to an Outside Offeror shall provide that the acceptance thereof by the grantee shall constitute an assumption of the provisions of the Master Deed, the By-Laws and the Rules and Regulations, as the same may be amended from time to time. Any such lease shall be consistent with these By-Laws and shall provide that it may not be modified, amended, extended or assigned, without the prior consent in writing of the Board of Managers, that the tenant shall not sublet the demised premises, or any part thereof, without the prior consent in writing of the Board of Managers, and that the Board of Managers shall have power to terminate such lease or to bring summary proceedings to evict the tenant in the name of the landlord thereunder, in the event of default by the tenant in the performance of such lease.

Except as hereinbefore set forth, any such lease shall be substantially in the form on file with the Board of Managers. In the event the offering unit owner shall not, within such sixty

(60) day period, contract to sell such individual unit, together with the Appurtenant Interests, or to lease such individual unit, as the case may be, to the Outside Offeror on the terms and conditions contained in the Outside Offer, or if the unit owner shall so contract to sell or lease his individual unit within such sixty (60) day period, but such sale or lease shall not be consummated pursuant to the terms of such contract, then should such offering unit owner thereafter elect to sell such individual unit, together with the Appurtenant Interests, or to lease such individual unit, as the case may be, to the same or another Outside Offeror on the same or other terms and conditions, the offering unit owner shall be required to again comply with all of the terms and provisions of this Section One of this Article VII.

together with the idual unit, or to 's designee, the offices of :: et, Mestfield,

ter the giving of

on to accept me ach individual mi

e sola, shall att

tes:goee, on behi a required by er 1934 as alenia.

a be leased, the

et to the Board : et the offering to

ers, ar its inche

r ni kas ri

The Board of

sc'e ismeni ri maria in .: History tow

the Board of Marie tite can any Mar pall with

102 CC 21

1.1.11 111.83 the extraction

M ist. De Link II. I TE TE 24 ::: E:: 2: 3:

Met. Mante BORTER TER n **af** 124 1174121. M Ed leting.

try not last a

i processor

ine come:

471 THE THE TE

25 DE

::: 52. : ber

4 THE : 22 FIEL CHEEK.

erent of Ministra

MT 522 245 22

int Start of Burn Mi. Chi mi

Any purported sale or lease of an individual unit in violation of this section shall be voidable at the elections of the Board of Managers.

Section 2. Consent of Unit Owners to Purchase or Lease of Individual Units By Board of Managers. The Board of Managers shall not exercise any option hereinabove set forth to purchase or lease any individual unit without prior approval of a majority of the unit owners, voted at a special meeting of the Association to be called within ten (10) days from receipt of said notice of intent. Said call shall state the purpose of the meeting and terms of the offer to be voted on.

Section 3. No Severance of Ownership. No unit owner shall execute any deed, mortgage, or other instrument conveying or mortgaging title to his individual unit without including therein the Appurtenant Interests, it being the intention hereof to prevent any severance of such combined ownership. Any such deed, mortgage, or other instrument purporting to affect one or more of such interests, without including all such interests, shall be deemed and taken to include the interest or interests so omitted, even though the latter shall not be expressly mentioned or described therein. No part of the Appurtenant Interests of any individual unit may be sold, transferred or otherwise disposed of, except as part of a sale, transfer or other disposition of the individual unit to which such interests are appurtenant, or as part of a sale, transfer or other disposition of such part of the Appurtenant Interest of all individual units.

Section 4. Release by Board of Managers of Right of First Refusal. The right of first refusal contained in Section 1 of this Article VII may be released or waived by the Board of Managers, without authorization by vote of the Association, in which event the individual unit together with the Appurtenant Interests, may be sold, conveyed, or leased, free and clear of the provisions of such section. Section 5. Certificate of Termination of Right of First Refusal. A certificate, executed and acknowledged by the Secretary of the Condominium, stating that the provisions of Section 1 of this Article VII have been met by a unit owner, or have been duly waived by the Board of Managers, and that the rights of the Board of Managers thereunder have terminated, shall be conclusive upon the Board of Managers and the unit owners in favor of all persons who rely thereon in good faith. Such certificate shall be furnished to any unit owner who has in fact complied with the provisions of Section 1 of this Article VII or in respect to whom the provisions of such section have been waived. The Board of Managers may assess a fee for the Certificate of Termination which shall not exceed \$10.00

Section 6. Financing of Purchase of Individual Units by Board of Managers. Acquisition of individual units by the Board of Managers, or its designee, on behalf of all unit owners, may be made from the working capital and common charges in the hands of the Board of Managers, without vote of the Association, or if such funds are insufficient, the Board of Managers may, upon vote of 75% of the membership so to do, levy an assessment against each unit owner in proportion to his ownership in the common areas and facilities, as a common charge, which assessment shall be enforceable in the same manner as provided in Sections 6 and 7 of Article V, or the Board of Manager's in its discretion, may borrow money to finance the acquisition of such individual unit, provided, however, that no financing may be secured by an encumbrance or hypothecation of any property other than the individual unit, together with the Appurtenant Interests, so to be acquired by the Board of Managers.

Section 7. Exceptions. The provisions of Section 1 of this Article VII shall not apply with respect to any sale or conveyance by a unit owner of his individual unit, together with the Appurtenant Interest, to his spouse or to any of his children or to his parent or parents or to his brothers or sisters, or any one or more of them or to an individual unit owned by the Sponsor, or to the acquisition or sale of an individual unit, together with the Appurtenant Interests, by a mortgagee foreclosure or by deed in lieu of foreclosure. However, the provisions of said section shall apply with respect to any purchaser of such individual unit from such mortgagee.

Section 8. Gifts and Devisees, etc. Any unit owner shall be free to convey or transfer his individual unit by gift, or to devise his individual unit by will, or to pass the same by intestacy, without complying with the provisions of Section 1 of this Article VII.

Waiver of Right of Partition with Respect to Such Individual Units as are Acquired by the Board of Managers, or its Designee, on Behalf of All Unit Owners as Tenants in Common. In the event that an individual unit shall be acquired by the Board of Managers, or its designee, on behalf of all unit owners as tenants in common, all such unit owners shall be deemed to have waived all rights of partition with respect to such individual unit except as provided herein.

of Pirst rovisions of

mit omer, or and that the terminated, sal e mait owners is

aith. Such

in Me eed stam

r who has in tact

is Article W. 2 on 179 been

es 12 108 2015 d

\$30:31:30 at 1 egers wer, words

sesmen Hun . .. Ce me: n manet fi

3 E in intia 2

ende en er En lenang er

Service I dicar

13151.31

1 102 7 2 e dinne

i Krize in install

rement in K.

R., ME 24. 2

I. 19 III. 12 785 11 SEE 1

.i...: \$ ir.i.l

ri ays x . ili uguse u uj ilu 1.3

Section 10. Payment of Assessments. No unit owner shall be permitted to convey, mortgage, pledge, hypothecate, sell or lease his individual unit unless and until he shall have paid in full to the Board of Managers all unpaid common charges theretofore assessed by the Board of Managers against his individual unit and until he shall have satisfied all unpaid liens against such individual unit, except permitted mortgages. Nothing in this section, however, shall prevent the seller to use part of the proceeds of the sale to pay such charges.

Section ll. Mortgage of Individual Units. No unit owner shall mortgage his individual unit except by a first mortgage made to a bank, trust company, insurance company, federal savings and loan association, pension fund or other institutional lender, or by a purchase money mortgage to the Sponsor, or by a first mortgage made to a private party approved by the Board of Managers.

ARTICLE VIII

CONDEMNATION

Section 1. Condemnation. In the event of a taking in condemnation or by eminent domain of part or all of the common areas and facilities, the award made for such taking shall be payable to the Board of Managers.

If 75% or more of the unit owners duly and promptly approve the repair and restoration of such common areas and facilities, the Board of Managers shall arrange for the repair and restoration of such common areas and facilities, and the Board of Managers shall disburse the proceeds of such award to the contractors engaged in such repair and restoration in appropriate progress payments. In the event that 75% or more of unit owners do not duly and promptly approve the repair and restoration of such common areas and facilities, the Board of Managers shall disburse the net proceeds of such award in the same manner as they are required to distribute insurance proceeds where there is no repair or restoration of the damage, as provided in Section 3 of Article V of these By-Laws.

ARTICLE IX

RECORDS

Section 1. Records and Audits. The Board of Managers or the managing agent shall keep detailed records of the actions of the Board of Managers and the managing agent, minutes of the meetings of the Board of Managers, minutes of the meetings of the Unit owners, and financial records and books of account of the Condominium, including a chronological listing of receipts and expenditures, as well as a separate account for each individual unit which, among other things, shall contain the amount of each assessment of common charges against the balance remaining unpaid. A written report summarizing all receipts and expenditures of the Condominium shall be rendered by the Board of Managers to all unit owners at least quarter-annually. In addition, an annual report of the receipts and expenditures of the Condominium, certified by an independent certified public accountant, shall be rendered by the Board of Managers to all unit owners, and to all mortgagees of individual units who have requested the same, promptly after the end of each fiscal year.

ARTICLE X

MISCELLANEOUS

Section 1. Notices. All notices hereunder shall be sent by first class mail, post-paid, to the Board of Managers c/o the managing agent, or if there be no managing agent, to the office of the Board of Managers or to such other address as the Board of Managers may hereafter designate from time to time, by notice in writing to all unit owners and to all mortgagees of individual units. All notices to any unit owner shall be sent by first class mail, post-paid, to the Building or to such other address as may have been designated by him from time to time, in writing, to the Board of Managers. All notices to mortgagees of individual units, shall be sent by first class mail, post-paid, to their respective addresses, as designated by them from time to time, in writing to the Board of Managers. All notices shall be deemed to have been given when mailed, except notices of change of address which shall be deemed to have been given when received. Notice of any complaint or grievance of any member regarding services, nuisances or other matters which fall within the scope of the duties of the Board of Managers must be in writing served, in hand, at the office of the Sponsor or mailed, certified mail, to the address of the Sponsor at Hillside Road, Westfield, Massachusetts. No telephone or verbal complaints shall be considered by the Board of Managers to have been made until this provision has been complied with.

Section 2. Invalidity. The invalidity of any part of these By-Laws shall not impair or affect in any manner the validity, enforceability or effect of the balance of these By-Laws.

Section 3. <u>Captions</u>. The captions herein are inserted only as a matter of convenience and for reference, and in no way define, limit or describe the scope of these By-Laws, or the intent of any provision thereof.

Gender. The use of the masculine gender in these By-Laws shall be deemed to include the feminine gender and the use of the singular shall be deemed to include the plural, whenever the context so requires.

Section 5. <u>Waiver</u>. No restriction, condition, obligation, or provision contained in these By-Laws shall be deemed to have been abrogated or waived by reason of any failure to enforce the same, irrespective of the number of violations or breaches thereof which may occur.

ARTICLE XI

AMENDMENTS TO BY-LAWS

Amendments to By-Laws. Except as hereinafter provided otherwise, these By-Laws may be modified or amended by the vote of 75% of the unit owners at a meeting of unit owners held for such purpose. Section 1 of the Article III, insofar as it provides that the Sponsor so long as it is the owner of one or more individual units, shall be entitled to elect at least two (2) members of the Board of Managers, Section 8 of Article III, insofar as it provides that the Sponsor, so long as it is the owner of one or more individual units, may vote the votes appurtenant thereto, Section 14 of Article V, insofar as it provides that the provisions of such section shall not apply to any individual units owned by the Sponsor, Section 7 of Article VII, insofar as it provides that the Sponsor shall be exempt from the provisions of Section 1 of Article VII, insofar as it provides for a right of first refusal to the Board of Managers, and this Section 1 of Article XI, however, may not be amended without the consent in writing of the Sponsor, so long as the Sponsor shall be the owner of one or more individual units. No amendment shall be effective until recorded in the Hampden County Registry of Deeds.

ARTICLE XII

CONFLICTS

Section 1. Conflicts. These By-Laws are set forth to comply

with the requirements of Massachusetts General Laws (Ter. Ed.) Chapter 183A, as amended. In case any of these By-Laws conflict with the provisions of said statute or of the Master Deed, the provisions of said statute or of the Master Deed, as the case may be shall control.

-30-

AECENED

paders of the

e actions of the es of the meet

s of the will

of tecelots Et each individu

ne amount of e-

ed of the barr

maij, h arentine : termine min

#2-15E3 2.1

型は [181] [18] で エロ (181] [18]

24 be set s i wagus sa

Ket. 12 11 11 dres s reb

12 11E, 7 112.

pages if other

. m sen 5 in t in nem

ne 12 120e, 2 CC

- 15 2 KFZ

ted of compact . Litte min nim is भूका होता है।

. स्टब्स्ट व्यं हा स्ट

ener en de males is: "

CEST 1: ETTE

I TELL Kal I Mi Hi

rnesi

ce : Malain;

. 22 ard

cr: of the

MAY 27 1988

AT2:07/11_AND REG'D FROM THE ORIGINAL